



BY-LAWS AND RULES OF PROCEDURE

ARTICLE I

NAME

The association shall be known as the National Association of State Textbook Administrators (NASTA).

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP

Membership in the National Association of State Textbook Administrators is defined as Regular Membership (including other delegated members) and Voting Membership. These categories of membership are defined as follows:

A. Regular Membership:

Regular membership shall be open to any individual identified by his/her state superintendent as being the administrator of the textbook/instructional materials program in that state. Additional members from each state, who are in attendance with the regular membership, shall be referred to as "other delegated members." Each regular member and other delegated members shall be listed on the NASTA roster and receive all information about NASTA meetings and activities. A regular member who is unable to attend a meeting may delegate his/her authority to another staff member from his/her state department of education in writing to the NASTA president either prior to the convening of the meeting or at the start of the scheduled meeting.

B. Voting Membership:

Voting members are regular members or their duly delegated representatives who are in attendance at a NASTA meeting or who have attended one of the three previous meetings.

C. Associate membership

Former NASTA members may become Associate Member of NASTA upon payment of membership/meeting fees. Associate members are responsible for their own expenses. Associate Members may not hold office and may not vote.

D. Honorary membership

Former NASTA members may become candidates for Honorary Membership by being nominated by at least three Regular Members, not including officers. Upon executive officer approval, Honorary Member must be approved by an unanimous vote of membership. Honorary Members are responsible for their own expenses and meeting fees. Honorary Members may not hold office and may not vote.



ARTICLE III

MEETINGS

It is the intent of the association to hold two national meetings annually. The president and/or ten voting members have the authority to call special meetings of the association by written petition to the secretary.

Annual Meeting – Specific date, time & location shall be designated by hosting state. Members shall be notified 90 days prior to annual meeting and submit registration within 30 days of meeting.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

The officers of the association shall be president, vice-president, and secretary-treasurer, to be elected from its voting membership during the annual meeting. A parliamentarian and historian will be appointed by the president. In the event of the death or incapacity of an officer to serve, the remaining officers shall select someone to complete the term and announce the appointment to the membership. In the case of the president, the vice-president shall be elevated to the presidency and a vice-president chosen by the officers.

ARTICLE V

DUTIES OF OFFICERS

The president shall preside at all meetings of the association, appoint standing and special committees, serve as the chair of the NASTA representatives to the Advisory Commission on Textbook Specifications (ACTS), appoint the ACTS chair and vice-chair, ensures policy and procedures are reviewed and updated as necessary and conducts the business of the association during the interim between meetings.

The vice-president shall aid the president in all activities of the association as directed by the president and shall preside in the president's absence and succeed to the presidency if the president cannot serve.

The secretary-treasurer shall be the recording secretary for all NASTA meetings. The secretary-treasurer shall take all minutes of the meetings and transcribe and send a copy of the minutes to the membership for their approval. (NOTE: The minutes of each meeting shall carry a list of the voting membership by name and address; also, a designated list of the associate and honorary members by name and address shall be included.) The secretary-treasurer shall oversee the NASTA Bylaws and ensure all records of the Bylaws, newsletter, minutes and resolutions are filed. The secretary-treasurer shall collect all registration fees for each meeting and shall also keep an up-to-date record of revenues and expenditures of the association.

The parliamentarian shall assure that proper procedures are followed during association meetings and deliberations.

The historian shall arrange for a photograph of NASTA members to be taken at each meeting. The historian shall also update the history of the association annually.



ARTICLE VI

PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules in the current edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall be the recognized parliamentary authority.

ARTICLE VII

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OR PROCEDURES

Policy and Procedures have the same authority as bylaws; however published separately to provide changes under the authorization of the executive board members.

ARTICLE VIII

QUORUM

A majority of the attending states at a scheduled meeting with a voting member present constitutes a quorum.

ARTICLE IX

VOTING

Each member state shall have one vote. Two-thirds of the voting members present or their designated representatives shall vote for any item or business to give it association approval.

ARTICLE X

REGISTRATION FEES

Registration fees shall be determined by the three officers and will be collected at each meeting of the association. All registration fees shall be announced 90 days prior to meeting. All registration fees shall be turned over to the secretary-treasurer to help defray the expenses incurred by the association during the year.

ARTICLE XI

AMENDMENTS

The Bylaws can be amended only by two-thirds vote of the voting members present or their designated representatives. Any proposed amendment must be submitted in writing to the president in time to allow distribution to each member 30 days prior to the first day of the next scheduled meeting. Any revisions to proposed amendments will be considered and acted upon during that meeting.

*Approved: August 2009
Greenville, South Carolina
Val Fenske, Secretary/Treasurer*